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Reducing the impact and incidence of cancer in the ACT for over 40 years

Working in the Australian Capital Territory to
reduce the incidence and impact of cancer

The Australian Capital Territory (ACT)

Cancer Council ACT

What we do

Cancer Council ACT (CCACT) is
a non government, not-for-profit
community organisation that aims to
promote a healthier community by
reducing the incidence and impact
of cancer in the ACT region. CCACT
depends largely on the generosity of
the ACT and surrounding community
providing donations and supporting
fundraising initiatives.

Cancer Research Funding

Memberships

We have a range of free cancer publications, educational programs
and forums.

Cancer Council ACT, together with
other member organisations in each
state and territory, is a member of
Cancer Council Australia and the
International Non-Governmental
Coalition Against Tobacco. Cancer
Council ACT is also a member of
the Union for International Cancer
Control (UICC).

We provide annual funding for cancer related research projects in the ACT,
commission our own research and contribute to other parties’ research.

Cancer Council Helpline 13 11 20
We provide free and confidential information and support on all aspects
of cancer.

Cancer Information

Cancer Support
Along with the Cancer Council Helpline, emotional and practical support
is provided through a support group, educational programs and the
Legal and Financial Planning Referral Service.

Education Programs and Forums
Educational programs and regular forums are held on a range of topics
for people with cancer, their families and friends.

Wig Service
We sell a range of affordable wigs and other headwear.

SunSmart Information
We work to raise awareness of skin cancer and promote positive sun
protection behaviour through the National SunSmart Schools and
SunSmart Early Childhood Programs and the Workplace Program

Tobacco Control Program

Cover photgraphs: Clockwise from
top left; Harold and Margaret Fryar
at the Volunteers’ Christmas Party;
Survivors’ and Carers’ Lap, Relay
for Life 2014; Dougal Bear; CCACT
stand at The ActewAGL Royal
Canberra Show. Background:
the new CCACT Wig Service.

Quit smoking information and a range of Quit Courses are provided with the
aim of reducing the impact of tobacco smoking and preventing its uptake
by people in the ACT.

Fundraising to continue our work
83% of Cancer Council ACT’s total gross revenue in 2013–14 was
raised through donations, bequests and community events including the
well-known Daffodil Day, Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea and Relay For
Life. Our fundraising gives us the ability to provide our services in the ACT
to people in the ACT and surrounding region.
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About this Annual Report
This annual report provides details of
Cancer Council ACT activities, initiatives
and achievements for the financial year
ended 30 June 2014.
Approximately 200 copies of this
comprehensive report are printed
and provided to key stakeholders
within Australia including other state
and territory cancer organisations,
government, members, and other
interested parties. The report is
also available on the website at
www.actcancer.org.
The report is the major publication
produced by Cancer Council ACT each
year. It is used to provide readers with
information about CCACT’s performance
during the year and indicate direction for
the coming year.

Cancer Council ACT aims to make this
report an accurate, informative and
easy to read document. Your feedback
and suggestions for improvement are
welcome. If you have any comments,
please contact Cancer Council ACT.
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Strategic Plan 2009
and Beyond
Vision
The wellbeing of the broader
Canberra community is enhanced as
a result of health promotion actions
which have reduced the incidence
and impact of cancer.

Strategies
Strategy 1
Use the most appropriate evidence-based
activities and tools to ensure Cancer Council
ACT realises its vision.
Strategy 2
Maintain a portfolio of fundraising activities
which engages those who share our vision
by matching their capacity and motivation
to donate.
Strategy 3

Dimension 1e
For health practitioners to use evidencebased practices in supporting individuals to
achieve healthy behaviours.
Dimension 1f
For quality research into reducing the
incidence of cancer to be supported.

Target Outcome 2: Reducing the
impact of cancer
Dimension 2a
For people in the ACT affected by a cancer
diagnosis to have the negative impact of
cancer minimised.
Dimension 2b
For people in the ACT to experience a
reduction in the impact of cancer through
prudent early detection and the provision of
appropriate services following diagnosis.

Build and maintain a range of skills in Cancer
Council ACT’s workforce which will enable it
to deliver high quality services to its clients
and customers.

Dimension 2c
For cancer patients and their families to
have sufficient information and skill to
reduce anxiety and have a satisfactory level
of control during their cancer experience.

Outcomes to be achieved

Dimension 2d
For cancer patients and their families,
to have the negative impact of cancer
minimised by legislation and public policy.

Target Outcome 1: A reduction in the
incidence of cancer
Dimension 1a
For people in the ACT, generally, to be
aware of the need to use cancer prevention
strategies and be motivated to take
responsibility for changing their behaviour.
Dimension 1b
For people in the ACT to be supported to
practise healthy behaviours by appropriate
legislation and public policy.
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Dimension 1d
For employers and community infrastructure
authorities to understand and support
cancer preventing behaviours.

Dimension 1c
For related service providers such as
schools, early childhood centres, youth
centres etc to understand and encourage
and support healthy behaviours.

Dimension 2e
For cancer patients to have ready access
to high quality, coordinated medical and
ancillary cancer services.
Dimension 2f
For cancer patients and their families
to have ready access to appropriate
community support services.
Dimension 2g
For health practitioners to use evidencebased information as the basis for their
treatment of cancer patients.
Dimension 2h
For quality research into reducing the
impact of cancer to be supported.

Dear Members and other Stakeholders
Welcome to the 38th Annual Report of
Cancer Council ACT (CCACT). It is our
pleasure once again to present this report.
As you will see in the following pages, in
2013-14 CCACT has continued to achieve
in the area of cancer control in the ACT.
With tobacco related cancers still the largest
cause of death in Australia, we are especially
pleased about our involvement in working
towards the Canberra Hospital campus
transitioning, with Calvary Hospital, to
become completely smoke free environments.
CCACT’s tobacco control work once again
exceeded our contracted requirements with
the ACT Health Directorate. The details are
in the following pages. Whilst tobacco use
continues to decline, the threat to this hardwon achievement may come from e-cigarettes
and we look forward to being part of the
future debate on this. It is worth noting that
e-cigarettes are endorsed by the big tobacco
companies.
A real highlight of the year was morning tea at
Government House, hosted by His Excellency,
Mr Michael Bryce for World Cancer Day.
Mr Bryce spoke from his personal experience
about the importance of sun protection.
Addressing the high school principals and
school nurses in the audience, he focussed
his speech on the need for secondary
students to become SunSmart.
Skin cancer costs the health system in
Australia more than any other cancer and
it is a largely preventable cancer. CCACT’s
dedicated skin cancer prevention program,
SunSmart, has returned some very positive
results this year with a notable breakthrough
in the ACT having, in collaboration with the
school, a whole year seven class (state
secondary school) wear hats for outdoor
physical education lessons. CCACT was
also pleased that the 2013 National Early
Childhood Sun Protection Policy and Practice
Survey, comparing results with the 2008
survey, showed the ACT to have a high
uptake of a range of sun protection practices
and written policies. The support of ACT
politicians who had their skin checked by
Dr Andrew Miller, a practising dermatologist

and his colleague Dr Catherine Drummond
was a welcome boost to this program. This
was a joint venture between AMA-ACT and
CCACT.
The Cancer Information and Supportive
Care Service introduced a new education
program Cancer and Me, which offers an
opportunity for those who have cancer, and
their family and friends, to get together while
accessing information and support from the
Cancer Council and guest speakers. We were
especially pleased at the expansion of the
Legal and Financial Planning Referral Service
to include the Small Business and Workplace
Advisory program which can refer small
business owners to an accountant if a cancer
diagnosis is a cause of business worries.
For many years CCACT was given to
understand that the Wig Service at Canberra
Hospital would eventually be rehoused in
a more appropriate space in the hospital.
When the Canberra Region Cancer Centre
was being built a dedicated space for the
Wig Service formed part of the blueprint.
Unfortunately, when built, the space was
not as CCACT had recommended, and was
considerably smaller than our current space.
CCACT decided to cease trading at the
hospital at the end of 2013 and to operate
from only one site, at Fairbairn.

Ms Christine Brill,
President
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Report from President and
Chief Executive Officer 2013–14

Ms Joan Bartlett, Chief
Executive Officer

We were honoured when the Chief Minister
and Minister for Health, Ms Katy Gallagher,
opened the new bigger and more attractive
space in Fairbairn in April. Our profound
thanks to Georgina Byron and the Snow
Foundation for designing and fitting out the
lovely new space. After an early contraction
in the usual number of wigs sold after the
move, sales rose to be comparable with the
combined sales at both sites previously.
CCACT was involved in the development
of the Cancer Resource Centre in the
new Canberra Region Cancer Centre and
continues to supply materials and advice as
necessary. The $45 million Centre had its
November 2013 opening delayed until August
2014 after a hot water pipe burst flooding
the five storey building with up to 40,000
litres of water. In another development, a
small medi- hotel opened in April at Canberra
Hospital with six single and 2 double rooms.
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We currently await the first draft of the ACT
and Southern NSW Local Health District
Cancer Services Plan to which CCACT has
contributed.
In this report you will find details of CCACT’s
research program which will be given quite
a boost in the near future because of a large
bequest made to us. We are so grateful to
all those who remember to leave CCACT
something in their Wills. Two researchers who
have received Cancer Council ACT grants
and who are making news include Dr Anneke
Blackburn from the John Curtin School of
Medical Research and Dr Sudha Rao and her
team at Canberra University.
The future of cancer treatment is very exciting
with immunotherapy holding incredible
promise. Immunotherapy can unleash the
power of a patient’s immune system to fight
cancer in the way it fights pathogens. We
need to get greater scientific understanding
of the immune system, so funds for cancer
research are vital.
Some time ago the Board called for a review
of the Shop. The Board was concerned that
it was not realising the return to CCACT that
it needed to in order to continue to fund the
service. The era of online shopping had begun
and it was unlikely that the business, as it
was, would grow. Finally, the decision was
taken to close the shop at the end of 2013.
An undoubted highlight of the year for the
events area was the outstanding result of the
2013 Relay For Life which grossed $660,000,
a massive 54% increase on the previous
year. In other news, the Royal Canberra Golf
Club has reviewed its Charity Golf Day format
and chosen five charities to be part of a new
system in which one of the five will be the
beneficiary of a Charity Day run each year by
the Club. CCACT is the lucky 2014 recipient
of the proceeds from the new format.
Changes to some of the other fundraising
strategies, which are likely to affect CCACT,
are also being considered by the state and
territory Cancer Councils.
CCACT was sad to hear of the death
of Emeritus Professor John Williams.
Professor Williams was a founding member
of Cancer Council ACT, then the ACT Cancer
Society. He was Chair of the Society from
1976 – 1979 and was made a Life Member
for his contributions to Cancer Council ACT.
He was also Chair of the Australian Cancer
Society, now Cancer Council Australia, from
1980–1983.
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We are delighted to announce that Lady
Lynne Cosgrove, wife of Governor-General
Sir Peter Cosgrove accepted CCACT’s
request to become our new patron. We look
forward to working together in the cause of
cancer control.
As usual, the list of those to whom we wish
to offer special thanks is a long one. Firstly,
thank you to our volunteers who work with
us in fundraising, the wig service and other
important ways. You share with all of us in
the achievements which are recorded in this
report. We would like to make special mention
of the following:
 ACT Health Directorate for providing us
with substantial funding which supports
several of our programs.
 His Excellency, Mr Michael Bryce, who
was a good patron to CCACT being
passionately involved in one of our great
causes, skin cancer prevention. We wish
both Michael and Dame Quentin Bryce a
satisfying retirement.
 The Snow Foundation, which continues
to support CCACT with funds to buy wigs
for our wig service, and who, this year,
provided the brilliant refurbishment of our
wig service.
 The Colin Telfer Memorial Fund through
Greater Good, the Capital Region
Community Foundation which provides us
with regular donations.
 Ms Hilary Wardaugh, professional
photographer, for the photographs she
takes, pro bono each year for the Annual
Report.
 Minter Ellison Lawyers who provide pro
bono legal advice.
 Finally, thank you to the other Directors,
staff members, sponsors, colleagues and
the ACT community for contributing to yet
another successful year. We can’t do what
we do without you!
Christine Brill
President JP, CAE
Joan Bartlett
Chief Executive Officer, MBA,
M Ed Studies

The financial result of a $572,282 surplus
(2013: $18,983 surplus) is a very pleasing
position for the end of the 2013–14
financial year.

My continuing thanks to Joanne Grant and
Joan Bartlett for their ongoing guidance and
support to the Treasurer.

A large proportion of this surplus is due to
a significant bequest of $228,200 received
during the year. Cancer Council ACT is very
proud to be entrusted with these funds and,
in line with the conditions of the bequest, we
have identified these funds separately so they
can be specifically used to support cancer
research. The increase in the Cash and Cash
Equivalents balance to $1,642,087 (2013:
$1,014,409) reflects the operating surplus.

Treasurer
B Comm (Acc) CPA

Lucyanne Boom
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Treasurer’s Report for year
ended 30 June 2014

Increased revenue from Special Events and
Donations has also contributed to the final
surplus, while costs continue to be well
managed and contained where possible
across all categories. The large changes
in Shop Revenue (2014: $89,737, 2013:
$308,958) and Shop Merchandise (2014:
$75,857, 2013: $157,641) are a result of
the Board decision to cease trading from
a physical location in 2013–14 although
Cancer Council products are still available
through our online shop.

The financial result of a $572,282
surplus (2013: $18,983 surplus) is a
very pleasing position for the end of
the 2013–14 financial year.
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Cancer Prevention and
Early Detection Program

Ms Bernadette Urack,
Tobacco Action Officer

Tobacco Control

Cancer Council ACT
Tobacco Control Program

Over the last financial year there has been
continued activity in the tobacco control
arena, specifically in relation to increases
in tobacco taxation.

Cancer Council ACT continues to operate
its tobacco control program, concentrating
efforts in providing a targeted range of
services to workplaces, community groups
and individuals in addition to serving on a
number of local and national committees.

Increasing the cost of cigarettes, through
taxation, has proven to be one of the most
effective measures that governments can take
to reduce smoking rates and the subsequent
premature death and disease caused by
smoking. There is considerable evidence
that shows that increasing the price of
tobacco products not only reduces the overall
consumption of cigarettes and the uptake of
smoking by adolescents, but also increases
the number of quit attempts.
On 6 November 2013, the Federal
Government announced that it would proceed
with implementation of four 12.5% tobacco
excise increases. The first 12.5% increase
commenced on 1 December 2013 and the
remaining 12.5% increases will occur on 1
September 2014, 1 September 2015 and
1 September 2016, respectively. Cancer
Council ACT is supportive of increased
taxation on tobacco products in view of
this current evidence that supports it as an
effective measure to encourage cessation and
reduce uptake.
On a more local level, on World No Tobacco
Day (31 May 2014) the ACT Government
announced that the Canberra and Calvary
Hospital campuses, already substantially
smoke free, will become completely smoke
free in September 2014. Cancer Council ACT
has been involved with the implementation of
Canberra Hospital transitioning to becoming
a smoke free institution and is very supportive
of this initiative. This is because limiting the
opportunities and places in which people are
able to smoke is a tobacco control strategy
that has been instituted in some way in all
Australian states and territories in response
to the persuasive scientific evidence gathered
over the last two decades on the harmful
effects of first and secondhand smoke.
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The services CCACT continues to provide are:
 dissemination of information and
resources regarding all things smoking
and tobacco related;
 support and advice for family/friends of
smokers and smokers themselves wanting
to quit smoking;
 quit smoking courses for groups,
workplaces and community organisations;
 quit smoking information seminars for
groups, workplaces and community
organisations;
 brief intervention counselling for individuals
needing intensive support to assist with
quitting; and
 smoking cessation training for health
or other professionals who have direct
contact with clients.
Aligned with the ACT Alcohol, Tobacco and
Other Drug Strategy 2010–2014 and the
Australian Governments’ National Tobacco
Strategy 2012–2018, CCACT targets its
services towards those most disadvantaged
in the community who have a much higher
rate of smoking and as a result bear the
disproportionate share of the burden of illness
and mortality caused by smoking.
In 2013–14 CCACT managed to exceed
its contractual requirements in terms of
the number of smoking cessation courses,
seminars and brief interventions that were
delivered in the community.

Participating organisations included:

Quit smoking courses are offered to
workplaces, community organisations or
other established groups who have a number
of clients, members or employees who have
requested further support in quitting smoking.
Two courses are available: the ‘Fresh Start
Course’ (8 x 1 hour sessions) and the ‘Short
Course’ (2 x 3 hour sessions with Quitline1
support) which are delivered onsite to the
requesting organisation. These two courses
are designed to enable participants to
develop an understanding of the role smoking
plays in their lives and develop strategies to
replace smoking and manage cravings and
withdrawal symptoms.

 ACT Commerce and Works Directorate

In 2013–14 CCACT delivered 9 fresh start
courses, servicing a combined total of
67 participants.
Participating organisations included:
 Australian National University
 Australian War Memorial
 Belconnen High School

 ACT Education and Training Directorate
 ACT Environment and Planning Directorate
 ACT Justice and Community Safety
Directorate
 ACT Territory and Municipal Services
Directorate
 Australian War Memorial
 Brian Hennessey Rehabilitation Centre
x 2 sessions
 CatholicCare
 Canberra PCYC – youth program
x 2 sessions
 Cockram Constructions
 Commonwealth Ombudsman
 Communities@Work
 Department of Agriculture, Fisheries
and Forestry
 Department of Immigration and Border
Protection

 Brian Hennessey Rehabilitation Centre

 Department of Infrastructure and
Regional Development

 Calvary Hospital

 Directions ACT

 CCCares

 Duffy Primary School

 Department of Environment

 Garran Primary School

 Galilee School

 Namadji School

 Mental Health Foundation

 Northside Community Services (Oaks
Estate and Gowrie Court) x 4 sessions

Quit smoking seminars

 Oceania Tobacco Control Conference
Presentation

The Quit smoking seminars are offered to
workplaces, community organisations or other
established groups to provide information
to clients, members or employees about
smoking in general as well as information
on quitting smoking for themselves or to
support someone else who may be thinking
of quitting. Often a quit smoking seminar
is delivered initially to determine interest in
running a quit-smoking course, which may
then be provided to the organisation at a
later date.
In 2013–14 CCACT delivered 38 smoking
information seminars servicing a combined
total of 646 participants.
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Quit smoking courses

 Samaritan House x 11 sessions
 St Francis Xavier College

Brief interventions
Brief interventions, or individual counselling
services, are provided to individuals who
have expressed a desire to quit smoking
and require intensive support or are unable
to access a quit-smoking course. Brief
intervention sessions are designed to provide
clients with an opportunity to discuss the
options available to assist with quitting
smoking as well as establish an individual quit
plan. Often only one initial session is required,
but clients have an opportunity to access
follow-up sessions if needed.
In 2013–14 CCACT provided 34 brief
intervention sessions to a total number of
16 clients.

1 Quitline (13 78 48) is a telephone counselling and
advice service for anyone in Australia seeking
support or information about quitting smoking.
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Referrals came from the following:

 Mental Health Community Coalition

 Canberra Men’s Centre

 Mental Health, Justice Health, Alcohol &
Drug Services – Adult Mental Health Unit
x 4 sessions

 Chief Minister and Cabinet
 Directions ACT
 Individuals
 Junction Youth Health Service
 Mental Health Foundation
 Personal Helpers and Mentors Service
 St Vincent De Paul

Training for health and other
professionals
In recognition of the need to increase
community capacity to support smokers to
quit, CCACT also offers smoking cessation
training for health or other professionals who
have direct contact with clients.
Often when clients are accessing health and
other services they are asked at initial intake
whether they are smokers. However, having
identified as a smoker the conversation on
this issue may not be continued, despite
this interaction being a prime time for brief
smoking cessation advice to be provided.
Therefore, this training is provided to health
and other professionals with the aim of
equipping them to support their clients to
quit smoking following a framework that
is designed to be undertaken in less than
5-minutes or more in-depth counselling if
they have the capacity.
In 2013–14 CCACT delivered 21 training
sessions to health professionals servicing a
combined total of 183 participants.
Participating organisations included:
 ACT Youth Affairs Conference
Presentation
 AIDS Action Council
 Canberra PCYC youth workers
 Catholic Care
 Directions ACT x 2 sessions
 Heart Foundation

In 2013–14 CCACT delivered
21 training sessions to health
professionals servicing a combined
total of 183 participants.
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 Mental Health, Justice Health, Alcohol
& Drug Services – Brian Hennessey
Rehabilitation Centre
 Mental Health, Justice Health, Alcohol &
Drug Services – Mental Health Directorate
Clinicians forum
 Mental Health, Justice Health, Alcohol &
Drug Services – Mental Health Directorate
– full day ‘Tackling Tobacco’ training
 St Francis Xavier College teachers
 University of Canberra, Adolescent Health
Students
 University of Canberra Health and
Movement Students x 3 sessions
 Winnunga Nimmityjah Aboriginal Health
Service x 2 sessions

Information and resource provision
Individuals, health services, general
practitioners, community organisations and
workplaces all regularly contact CCACT
seeking further information about the harms
of tobacco, smoking in general and methods
of quitting smoking. CCACT regularly provides
these individuals and services with general
information and awareness brochures/
posters/information sheets and links to further
information if required.
CCACT also attends various health
promotion events and expos to promote
the ‘quit-smoking’ message, the use of the
Quitline as well as to inform local residents
of the services that CCACT can provide to
assist them, or someone close to them, to
quit smoking.
One specific resource in which CCACT
provides to people requesting information,
support and/or advice on quitting smoking
is a ‘Quit Pack’ which is a comprehensive
package that contains a number of
information brochures and promotional
materials. The Quit Pack is designed to
demonstrate to the individual why making the
decision to quit smoking is the best choice
for them and those around them and also
provides a range of ideas on how to quit
and stay a non-smoker. Quit packs are also
directly sent to ACT residents who call the
NSW Quitline.

Cancer Council ACT receives partial funding
from ACT Health Directorate to deliver a
variety of services that make up the SunSmart
Program here in Canberra. Once again
Cancer Council ACT successfully delivered
these services and more.

Mr David Wild, SunSmart
Services Coordinator

Protection from
Over-exposure to Solar
Ultraviolet Radiation
During 2013–14 Cancer Council ACT’s
SunSmart Program focused on raising
awareness of skin cancer prevention
amongst ACT early childhood settings,
primary and secondary schools, outdoor
workers, local workplaces and the
general population.
During the summer period, and through the
support of local TV and radio stations, Cancer
Council ACT once again aired the Sid Seagull
community service announcement.

Canberra Milk once again supported Cancer
Council ACT to reinforce the dangers of
tanning over the summer period by providing
free advertising on the 600ml Canberra Milk
carton with a potential reach of approximately
109,000 people.

ACT primary schools and
early childhood services
CCACT implements both the National
SunSmart Schools and Early Childhood
Programs in the ACT. Both programs aim to
motivate and assist key people in a variety
of settings to develop and implement a
comprehensive sun protection policy that
meets minimum SunSmart standards in the
curriculum, behaviour and the environment.
This includes implementing a balance
between effective sun protection behaviour
yet maintaining adequate exposure for vitamin
D, particularly during the winter period when
UV levels are low in Canberra.
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Cancer Council ACT’s SunSmart
Program

Through the programs, schools and early
childhood services are awarded SunSmart
status in recognition of their past, current
and ongoing efforts and commitment to skin
cancer prevention and awareness.
ACT primary schools and services with
SunSmart status have access to free Cancer
Council resources, they also receive a large
“We are SunSmart” display sign, discounts
on Cancer Council sunscreen, access to
SunSmart E-News updates and news during
the year as well as general ongoing support
and assistance with their sun protection policy
and practices. Schools and services with
SunSmart status are also reviewed by Cancer
Council ACT every 3 years to ensure their
policy and procedures continue to meet high
national SunSmart standards.
During this period over 120 Canberra
teachers/educators were awarded a Cancer
Council Professional Development certificate
for successfully completing the Generation
SunSmart online training modules.
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The National SunSmart
Early Childhood Program
Since its Canberra launch in November 2004
the SunSmart Early Childhood Program
has continued to grow in strength in the
ACT. During this period 4 early childhood
services were awarded SunSmart status
for their efforts and commitment toward
skin cancer prevention and awareness. An
additional 25 childhood services took part
in their three year SunSmart review. To date,
approximately 113 (roughly 90%), of early
childhood services in the ACT have been
awarded national SunSmart status.
Twelve SunSmart Masterclass workplace
sessions were also delivered, reaching
over 200 early childhood educators across
the ACT.

New Resource – A Simply
Spectacular Hat
Cancer Council Australia’s SunSmart Schools
and Early Childhood Working Group secured
national funding through the National Skin
Cancer Committee to develop a new resource
for this age setting. A Simply Spectacular
Hat by acclaimed Australian children’s writer
Libby Gleeson was reproduced and shared
amongst state and territory Cancer Councils.
Approximately 45 ACT childhood services
requested and received a complimentary copy
of the book during this period

2013 National Early Childhood Sun
Protection Policy and Practice Survey
During this period findings from Cancer
Council’s 2013 National Early Childhood Sun
Protection Policy and Practice Survey were
handed down from Cancer Council SA. This
was the second survey of its kind, the original
baseline survey was conducted in 2008.
Approximately 80 of the 124 sampled services
in the ACT participated in the survey yielding a
local response rate of 65% (national response
rate was 59%).
Overall, the study provided invaluable
information about current sun protection
policy and practices amongst ACT’s early
childhood services. Results suggest that there
is high uptake of a range of sun protection
practices and that most services had a
written sun protection policy. The survey also
demonstrated improvements in many other
areas since 2008.
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It is comforting to know that approximately
94% of ACT services are aware of the
daily SunSmart UV Alert, and that a large
proportion of these services have used the UV
Alert. ACT services also lead the way when it
came to requiring staff to complete education/
training on sun protection and/or occupational
UV exposure. Cancer Council ACT can also
feel comfortable knowing that the bulk (83%)
of services follow Cancer Council guidelines
when it comes to determining when sun
protection is actually required

The National SunSmart Schools
Program
During this period 9 Canberra primary
schools were awarded SunSmart status in
recognition of their efforts and commitment
to sun protection. This was an improvement
on previous years. Sixteen primary schools
took part in their three year SunSmart review
allowing Cancer Council ACT to liaise directly
with school Principals on the issue of skin
cancer control. Currently 84 ACT primary
schools have an active SunSmart status.
On a national level, Australian cricketer
Michael Clarke continued to support the
National SunSmart Schools Program during
this period.
CCACT continued its collaboration with other
ACT non-government/ not for profit health
organisations as an active member of the
‘Healthy Schools Network ACT’. During this
period the Network received a grant from
Teachers Mutual Bank to develop a new
website. The new website will act as a ‘one
stop shop’ to better assist ACT teachers with
their school’s health and wellbeing needs.
The website will launch in October 2014.

Eftpos Shade for Secondary Schools
Grant Program

The SunSmart Program continues to support
secondary schools wherever it can with their
efforts to engage students (and workers)
around the dangers of too much UV radiation.

The Shade for Secondary Schools Grant
Program was proudly supported by eftpos, and
provided secondary schools across Australia
with an opportunity to apply for a grant of up
to $25,000 to purchase shade for their school.
A total of 39 shade grants were up for grabs
across Australia totalling just under $1 Million. A
total of 324 secondary schools across Australia
applied for grants, including 9 secondary
schools from Canberra. Unfortunately there
could only be one winner from the ACT. CCACT
thanks the ACT secondary schools that got
behind the program.

During this period Cancer Council ACT was
fortunate to have on loan a UV Camera from
the Queensland University of Technology’s
AusSun Program. The camera produces
an image which shows melanin/pigment
distribution under the skin. In young,
undamaged skin melanin/pigment is fairly
evenly distributed, but with sun damage this
becomes more uneven in appearance and
more concentrated in high UV exposed areas.
This potential damage is not visible to the
naked eye or with a standard photo, but the
UV Camera can capture this skin freckling
appearance, highlighting where damage
has already begun. Over the summer period
11 ACT secondary schools booked the UV
Camera. A total of 36 presentations were
delivered across Canberra secondary schools
directly reaching hundreds of students and
dozens of ACT school teachers. Feedback
received from these schools was very positive.

SunSmart community, workplace
education and general support
Every year CCACT provides support,
education and resources to many local
organisations, schools, workplaces and
community groups in their attempts to
raise further awareness around skin cancer
prevention and awareness.
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Secondary Schools and
Sun Protection

In 2013–14 information, education and/or
resources were provided to:
 ABC Open Day
 ACT Property Group
 ACT Sport
 Acton Early Childhood Centre
 Antenatal clinic- Belconnen Health Centre
 Australian Pesticides and Veterinary
Medicines Authority
 Amaroo School Youth Week
 Blinky Bill Early Childhood Centre
 Bonython Primary School
 Burley Griffin Canoe Club
 Calwell Early Childhood Centre
 Canberra Institute of Technology
 Chief Minister and Treasury Directorate
 Chinese Australian Early Childhood Centre
 Civic Education and Care Centre
 Currawong Childcare Centre
 Defence Science and Technology
Organisation
 Department of Immigration and Border
Control
 Delnas Metal Roofing
 Ecowise Services
 French Australian Preschool
 Geoscience Australia
 Gold Creek World of Learning

A UV Camera image showing uneven pigment
distribution in the skin from too much sun exposure

 Goodstart Kambah
 Holy Family Primary School
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 KidSafe ACT
 Kingsford Smith School
 Lyneham High School
 Majura Park Childcare
 Melba Copland Secondary School
Health Expo
 Ngunnawal Childcare and Education
Centre
 Melanoma Patients Australia Canberra
Support Group
 OzHelp
 Prime Television
 Qantas Defence Services
 Queanbeyan Super GP Clinic
 R and B Solutions
 Rosemary Dobson Park Renaming
Committee
 St Thomas Apostle Fete Committee
 Tenix Australia
 Therapeutic Goods Administration
 Tuggeranong Childcare and Education
Centre
 Tuggeranong Health Centre
 Tuggeranong Little Athletic Association
 Weston Creek Medical Practice
 Winnunga Nimmityjah Aboriginal Health
Service
 WorkSafe ACT
 WorkWatch
 Yass Valley Council
 Zinfra Group

Sun Sound launched at Manuka Pool
SunSmart secondary school teacher volunteers provide show visitors with
free sunscreen and shade at The ActewAGL Royal Canberra Show
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During summer,
Cancer Council ACT
launched the Sun
Sound in Canberra
for the first time at
Manuka Pool to
raise awareness about
sun protection.

During summer, Cancer Council ACT
launched the Sun Sound in Canberra for the
first time at Manuka Pool to raise awareness
about sun protection. The Sun Sound was
created by Cancer Council NSW and works
as a simple and external reminder for people
to reapply sunscreen or seek out shade if they
are at a beach or pool setting.
Cancer Council ACT would like to thank the
Manager of Manuka Pool, Brian Pasfield,
and his staff for supporting the Sun Sound
over summer. Next summer Cancer Council
ACT will endeavour to set the Sun Sound up
across all Canberra public pools.

In recognition of National Skin Cancer
Action Week 2013 (3rd week of November)
Cancer Council ACT and Australian Medical
Association ACT (AMA) once again teamed
up to offer free skin checks to members of
the Legislative Assembly to raise awareness
of the importance of the early detection of
skin cancer.
Cancer Council ACT acknowledges AMA’s
support and commitment to skin cancer
prevention and also thanks Canberra
Dermatologist and President of the Australian
Medical Association (ACT) Dr Andrew Miller
for his contribution to National Skin Cancer
Action Week.

World Cancer Day 2014.
Can secondary schools do more?
In recognition of World Cancer Day this year,
Cancer Council ACT’s patron His Excellency
Mr Michael Bryce hosted a morning tea with
a special focus around sun protection in
Canberra secondary schools. The morning
tea at Government house was attended by
ACT secondary school nurses and school
principals.
Mr Bryce highlighted that whilst early
childhood services and primary schools have
made significant changes over the years to
reduce UV exposure, the same cannot be
said about ACT secondary schools. Cancer
Council ACT also used this opportunity to
thank Mr Bryce for his ongoing patronage and
support during his time at Government House
and his personal dedication and commitment
to skin cancer prevention.

Sales have been very weather dependent and
there have been several quite cool summers
during the last 5 years. This, plus the parlous
state of retail in general over recent years,
contributed to a decision by the Board of
Directors to close the shop. Added to these
conditions is also the massive growth in
internet retail sales (currently 6.5% and,
according to industry reports, growing to
18% over the next few years), and the ready
availability of Cancer Council products in
other outlets.
The net result of Onsite trading for the period
1 July 2013 to 30 June 2014 was a deficit
of $7,364 (excluding staffing costs & online
sales income). Some older items and those
less desired by customers had to be written
off at the end of June and this contributed to
the deficit. Sales for this financial year were
also discounted by 50% since 1 October to
entice people to purchase as much of our
inventory as possible instead of writing it off
with a nil value.
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National Skin Cancer Action Week
2013

All Cancer Council sun-protective products
continue to be available from the national
retail warehouse in Victoria and can be
ordered online, by telephone or by mail.
Sales through the online store have been
increasing gradually since its inception and
its later transfer to a national platform in
2011–12. All profits from ACT online sales
support Cancer Council ACT programs and
cancer research.
Net income from online sales in 2013–14 was
$10,198. This is an increase of 40% from the
previous year.

Cancer Council
ACT Shop
The Cancer Council ACT Shop closed its
doors on 1 November 2013 after about
20 years of operation. Until 1997 it was run
as a very small operation in our office (then
in Curtin). After that it moved into Westfield
Belconnen until December 2004, when it
moved, with the rest of the office, to Fairbairn.
The Shop has never really paid for itself, at
least not since the small office operation
moved to Belconnen. In earlier times Cancer
Council ACT has been happy to absorb the
costs as a community service, so long as our
costs were not too high.

The Cancer Council
ACT Shop closed its
doors on 1 November
2013 after about
20 years of operation.
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Cancer Information and
Supportive Care Service
The Cancer Information and Supportive
Care Service continued to work to support
people affected by cancer in the ACT
during 2013–14 by providing a variety of
information and support options. During
2013–14 the service provided 1,083
occasions of service.

Cancer Council Helpline

Ms Kate Aigner, Cancer
Information Consultant

Ms Sue West, Program
Administrator: Supportive
Care & Fundraising

Cancer Council Helpline 13 11 20 is a free,
confidential telephone information and
support service run by Cancer Council
Australia members in each state and territory.
During 2013–14, 636 calls were made to the
Helpline, this is 13% less than the 733 calls
received last year. The majority of people,
59%, access the Cancer Information and
Supportive Care Service through the Helpline.
When the ACT Helpline is not staffed during
operating hours calls are diverted to the
Cancer Council NSW Helpline. During
2013–14 Cancer Council NSW took 342 calls
on our behalf from clients in the ACT. This
is a 21% decrease from the 435 calls taken
last year. A steady decline in call numbers
to the Helpline has been reported across
all Cancer Councils. According to research
conducted by Cancer Council Australia, there
are a number of reasons why people may not
call, these include: unwilling to call a Helpline,
thinking it is a crisis line; uncertainty about
what the service offers; not being prompted to
call by health professionals; and feeling they
didn’t require further information and support.
Measures to address these issues will be
introduced in 2014–15.

The NPWG, of which CCACT is a member,
is responsible for creating cancer information
booklets for use nationally by all Cancer
Councils. CCACT was involved in reviewing
the publications produced in 2013–14.
All these publications are provided to clients
free of charge and are distributed either
directly to clients, through oncology wards
and community health organisations, via
information stands at various events, through
workplaces in the ACT, or can be accessed
on CCACT’s website.

Education Programs
Living Well After Cancer
This program is run in conjunction with
Cancer Council NSW. It is a free community
education program, facilitated by trained
cancer survivors and runs over two and half
hours. It covers practical information and
open discussion for people who are cancer
survivors, and their carers, family, friends and
work colleagues. One program was held in
2013–14 with 44 participants.

Clients may also access the service by email,
mail, fax or in person. The service received
47 emails in 2013–14, compared to the 60
received last year. The number of visits and
faxes remained consistent with previous years.

Publications
CCACT stocks a range of evidence based
cancer related publications some of which are
produced in house with the rest purchased
through the Cancer Council Australia National
Publications Working Group (NPWG).
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Living Well After Cancer facilitators Alan Potties
and Mary Regan

During 2013–14, Cancer Council ACT
introduced a new education program, Cancer
& Me. This free program provides information
and support to people with cancer, their family
and friends, as well as the opportunity to meet
others in a similar situation. Guest speakers
are invited to speak to the group about cancer,
its treatments and side effects, coping with a
cancer diagnosis and healthy eating.
We would like to thank Dr Paul Craft, medical
oncologist, Dr Anna Burger, psychiatrist and
Ms Marie Smith, dietitian, for their informative
presentations and to Vikings Tuggeranong
Town Centre for providing the venue.
One program was held in 2013–14 with
25 participants. Due to the positive feedback
received, CCACT will continue to offer this
program in 2014–15.

Legal and Financial Planning
Referral Service
The Legal and Financial Planning Referral
Service (LFPRS) provides much needed
assistance to people affected by cancer in
the ACT. It provides free legal and/or financial
planning advice for eligible cancer patients
and their families by connecting clients with
lawyers and financial planners in the ACT
who provide their services free of charge.
The service was expanded in 2013–14 to
include the Small Business and Workplace
Advisory services.
Legal issues covered by the service
include wills, powers of attorney, early
access to superannuation, mortgage
hardship variations, credit and debt issues,
insurance claims and disputes, employment,
discrimination and tenancy disputes. The
financial planners can assist with Centrelink
benefits, budgeting, transitioning to
retirement, planning for children’s future, debt
management, superannuation and insurance.
The Small Business Advisory Service
refers small business owners to qualified
accountants who can advise on tax issues,
appointing a caretaker, business debts, sale
of the business and assets and other issues.
The Workplace Advisory Service can refer
people to HR/recruitment personnel to
assist with managing workplace issues
before, during and after treatment,
including disclosing a diagnosis, managing
expectations, coping with side effects at work,

taking leave and managing discrimination,
bullying and harassment. They can also assist
with transitioning back into the workforce
after a period off work for treatment, including
reviewing CVs, role-playing interviews and
connecting with recruitment services.
The LFPRS is open to anyone affected by
cancer, however clients do need to pass
a means test to qualify for free assistance.
Those that don’t can still choose to have
paid assistance.
Nine clients were referred to the LFPRS
during 2013–14.

Lung Cancer and Mesothelioma
Support Group
The Lung Cancer and Mesothelioma Support
Group continues to run once a month, with
CCACT co-facilitating the group with the
Nurse Care Coordinator, Lung Cancer and
Mesothelioma at Canberra Hospital. It is open
to anyone with lung cancer or mesothelioma
and/or their families and friends. Generally
there is a guest speaker at each meeting who
cover a range of cancer related topics such
as exercise, radiotherapy, chemotherapy,
financial planning advice and breathing. The
group continues to have a steady attendance
each month with 127 occasions of service
in 2013–14, a 67% increase on the 76
occasions of service in 2012–13.
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Cancer & Me

Wig Service
The Wig Service offers wigs and other
headwear to people who have lost their hair
as a result of treatment for cancer. The Wig
Service had been operating from two sites
– Canberra Hospital and the CCACT offices
at Fairbairn. In January 2014 the two sites
were combined and a new and improved Wig
Service started operating at Fairbairn. Due to
combining the two locations the Wig Service
has been able to increase its opening hours
to 9:00-5:00pm Monday to Friday and also
increase the number of wigs and headwear on
display giving clients greater choice. The Wig
Service is staffed by CCACT staff and a small
team of dedicated volunteers. It is with thanks
to the support of the Snow Foundation that
the fit-out of a new room for the Wig Service
at Fairbairn was possible. On 4 April 2014 the
new CCACT Wig Service was officially opened
by ACT Chief Minister, Ms Katy Gallagher.
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The generous support of the Snow
Foundation, the Colin Telfer Memorial
Foundation and the South Canberra Uniting
Church allows us to sell wigs to people
undergoing cancer treatment at less than cost
price. Turbans and other headwear can also
be purchased from the Wig Service at less
than market value.
In July 2014 two human-hair wigs were
donated to the Wig Service by the Pantene
Beautiful Lengths program. The Beautiful
Lengths program encourages women from
across Australia to donate their ponytails to
make wigs for women who have lost their hair
due to cancer treatment.

In 2013–14 the Wig service provided 191
occasions of service. This is less than the
273 occasions of service provided last
year and may be as a result of a number
of factors including the closure of the Wig
Service at the Canberra Hospital, the easier
availability of wigs through ‘bricks and mortar’
operations in the ACT and elsewhere and
online shopping.

Cancer Information and Supportive Care Service Data
2013–14
Occasions of Service

2012–13
Occasions of Service

Telephone

636

733

E-mail

47

60

Visit

4

9

Fax and mail

9

7

Support Group

127

76

Wig Service

191

273

Education Programs

69

103

1,083

1,261

Total
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For many people newly diagnosed with
cancer, the Wig service is the first point of
contact with Cancer Council ACT. People
who visit the Wig Service are advised of the
full range of support and information services
provided by CCACT.

President Christine Brill and ACT Chief Minister
Katy Gallagher at the Wig Service opening

Sonja Loder with the wig donated by Pantene’s Beautiful
Lengths program that she purchased at the Wig Service

Cancer Council ACT is committed
to funding research into any aspect
of cancer control, including cancer
prevention, detection and treatment, as
well as understanding and improving
the emotional (psychological) and social
impact of the disease. This is achieved
through four primary means:
 by annually providing funds, received
from fundraising activities, to support
researchers in the ACT investigating
cancer related issues;
 by participating in and providing data
for research being undertaken by other
organisations;
 by undertaking our own research; and
 by contributing, though Cancer Council
Australia, to Cancer Australia’s Prioritydriven Collaborative Cancer Research
Scheme.
Through an annual research grants scheme
CCACT provides funds for independent
cancer research projects being conducted
in the ACT. To ensure that projects with
the best chance of success are supported
CCACT invites researchers in the ACT to
apply through the National Health and Medical
Research Council’s (NHMRC) Project Grants
scheme where the applications are assessed
by national experts in the relevant field.
Assessments are then referred back to the
Board via the Research Grants Committee
where the most suitable projects are chosen
for funding.
All research conducted and funded by
CCACT is possible only because of the
generous support of the ACT community
through bequests, donations and support of
our fundraising events.
In 2013–14 Cancer Council ACT spent
$67,839 on funding research, this included: a
$60,000 cancer research project grant; and
$7,839 through Cancer Council Australia, to
Cancer Australia’s Priority-driven Collaborative
Cancer Research Scheme. A summary of the
funded research project follows:

Project Title: Understanding and
targeting metabolic regulators of cancer
cell proliferation and cell death.
Grant awarded: $60,000
Principal Investigator:
Dr Anneke Blackburn, Cancer
Metabolism and Genetics Group,
John Curtin School of Medical
Research, Australian National University
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Research Program

Cancer cells have a different metabolic
program to normal cells. Dichloroacetate
(DCA) has been proposed as a new and
non-toxic anti-cancer agent that targets this
metabolic difference. Our laboratory has
previously shown the ability of DCA to inhibit
the growth of metastatic breast cancer in
vitro and in animals, reducing the ability of
cancer cells to grow and resist cell death.
The CCACT funded project will extend our
studies on DCA into multiple myeloma, a new
cancer type for us, but one that is in great
need of new treatment options.
The project aims to examine the effectiveness
of DCA against multiple myeloma cell lines,
and also primary myeloma cells collected
from patients, alone or in combination with
standard myeloma treatments, to determine
if DCA is an appropriate treatment to use
against myeloma, and to identify features of
the myeloma cells that can tell us if a patient’s
cancer is likely to respond to this drug.

Through an annual research grants
scheme CCACT provides funds for
independent cancer research projects
being conducted in the ACT.
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Dr Anneke Blackburn
speaking at the launch
of Australia’s Biggest
Morning Tea

These experiments will be performed in
parallel with an investigator-initiated clinical
trial currently due to commence at the end
of 2014 of DCA in multiple myeloma patients
at Canberra Hospital (in collaboration with
Dr D’Rozario of the Haematology Department,
funded by the Canberra Hospital Private
Practice Trust Fund), thus the results of this
grant will be directly translated into clinical
practice in a way that could benefit cancer
patients in the ACT.

ANU Medical School
Cancer Council ACT
Pathology Prize Year
Four 2013
Awarded for outstanding and
comprehensive knowledge and
application of Pathology issues.
The Academic Unit of Pathology at the
ANU Medical School in conjunction
with Cancer Council ACT has instituted
the annual Year Four Pathology Prize
of $500 in order to promote knowledge
of, and interest in Pathology. In 2013
the prize was won by Ms Giothini
Thirunavukaras. Cancer Council ACT
offers its warm congratulations to Ms
Thirunavukaras and wishes her well in
her future medical career.
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Right: Ms Christine Brill
presenting the Cancer
Council ACT Pathology
Prize to Ms Giothini
Thirunavukaras. Photo:
Irene Dowdy

Events
Cancer Council ACT is extremely grateful to
the Canberra community for their ongoing
support of our fundraising events. In 2013–14
a total of $1,266,811 was raised – an increase
of 21% compared to 2012–13. Relay For Life
was by far the most successful event of the
year for Cancer Council ACT.

Daffodil Day 2013
Friday 23 August 2013 marked the 27th year
of the Cancer Councils’ annual flagship event
– Daffodil Day.
This year over 140 schools, businesses
and community groups sold Daffodil Day
merchandise to help raise funds for this
annual event (30% fewer than the previous
year). Despite the decline in the number of
supporters, total income increased by 8%
($157,804 v $146,641 in 2012–13). This was
due to an increase in the sale of Daffodil Day
merchandise and fresh daffodils in shopping
centres around the ACT ($61,433 v $52,884
in 2012–13)
Cancer Council ACT would like to pass on
our gratitude to the hundreds of volunteers
who assisted us at the 30 merchandise stalls
around the ACT.

Pink Ribbon Day 2013
The pink ribbon is the international symbol of
support and recognition for women affected by
breast cancer and Monday 28 October 2013

officially marked ‘the Cancer Councils’ Pink
Ribbon Day. This year the campaign raised
a total of $120,844 for Cancer Council
ACT, a 2% increase compared to 2012–13
($118,524). Public support for Pink Ribbon
Day remains high with shopping centre site
income up by 8% ($32,398) this financial
year. With the incredible support of more than
200 volunteers, merchandise was sold at 22
shopping centre sites throughout the ACT.
The remaining 2012–13 income was obtained
from almost 250 schools, businesses and
community groups selling merchandise to
friends, family and colleagues or holding their
own ‘Pink’ event.
We launched Pink Ribbon Day with our
annual Pink Ribbon Day breakfast on Monday
28 October, at The Lobby Restaurant in
Parkes. With over 100 local women in
attendance the breakfast was a great event,
enjoyed by all. The guest speaker this year
was Professor Jane Dahlstrom. Professor
Dahlstrom is a Staff Specialist at Canberra
Hospital and Sub Dean and Professor of
Anatomical Pathology at the ANU Medical
School. The topic of her presentation was
‘When the doctor becomes a cancer patient’.
We would like to thank Professor Dahlstrom
for speaking, her presentation gave guests
a valuable insight into her own experience
of having breast cancer. Special thanks
also goes to our major sponsor, The Lobby
Restaurant, for their generous support,
beautiful venue, delicious breakfast and
amazing service.

Ms Lisa Meares, Manager
Fundraising Events
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Fundraising and
Business Development

Ms Julieanne Batten,
Marketing and Events
Coordinator

Ms Jemma Rossetto,
Fundraising Events
Coordinator

Ms Abby Masters,
Fundraising Events
Coordinator

Ladies enjoying a fun morning at CCACT’s annual Pink Ribbon Breakfast 2013
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Relay For Life 2014

Girls Night In host – Melissa Eagles (far right) raised
over $6000 at her Girls Night In event

Girls Night In 2013
Girls Night In raised $63,703 for Cancer
Council ACT in 2013–14 – a 47% increase
compared to last year’s income ($43,225).
In total, 78 Canberra women got the girls
together to raise vital funds for women’s
cancers.
In support of Girls’ Night In, Cancer Council
ACT once again hosted our annual movie
night with a special screening of Diana
starring Naomi Watts, on Thursday 17
October at Dendy Cinema. Guests were
treated to an evening of fun with each
receiving a special gift bag and an opportunity
to win some fantastic prizes. With over 170
guests in attendance, the night was an
enormous success, raising over $3,500 for
women’s cancer research. We would like to
thank all of our movie night sponsors who
generously donated products for the lucky
seats and gift bags.
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Guinness World Record Headshave

This year marked the 15th year of Relay
For Life in the ACT which once again took
place at the Australian Institute of Sport (AIS)
Athletics Track over the weekend of 29–30
March 2014. Relay For Life is without a doubt
one of Canberra’s most successful fundraising
events, attracting over 3,500 dedicated
participants and raising an extraordinary
$658,854 in 2013–14, a 54% increase from
2012–13 ($427,763).
A record number of 207 teams were treated
to a jam-packed program of entertainment
with local bands The Stilettos & Heuristic
along with performances including Fresh Funk
Dance, Royal Military College Band, Kulture
Break Dance and the Silky Six.
A key element of Relay this year was a World
Record attempt for the ‘most heads shaved
simultaneously’ which was achieved by
shaving 182 very enthusiastic heads. This was
an exciting inclusion for not only Canberra
Relay For Life but for the ACT in general.
After another dedicated year of fundraising
Rosemary Drabsch and her team ‘Bold
Bandannas’ took out the prize for the highest
fundraising team, raising over $20,885 which
was an amazing effort. The Bold Bandannas
have participated in every Relay For Life since
it commenced in 2000 and collectively have
raised over $200,000 – Well done!
We are extremely grateful to the AIS for
donating the use of their world class facility
and its services for our event. Also – very
special thanks goes out to the team from Mix
106.3 for their radio support, Royal Australian
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Relay For Life Staff & Committee 2014

Air Force for cooking the delicious breakfast
and all the performers who gave up their time
to entertain the crowd.
Cancer Council ACT would also like to
acknowledge the efforts of the volunteer
committee. The continued success of Relay
For Life could not be achieved without the
support of the volunteer organising committee
who devote many hours of their free time to
assist Cancer Council ACT with this event.
Most of all we are very grateful to the entire
Canberra community for supporting Canberra
Relay For Life – without whom there would be
no Relay!

We would like to thank our sponsors – Hyatt
Hotel Canberra for donating the use of their
venue and Staging Connections for donating
the use of AV equipment, as well as Adore
Tea, Latorta and Mrs Margaret Fryar for
donating some amazing raffle prizes.
We would like to acknowledge and congratulate
our 5 highest fundraisers for 2014:
1. Pauline Segeri $7,777
2. Dorothy Barclay (Forrest Hotel &
Apartments) $3,665
3. Aspen Medical $3,014
4. Therese Watts $3,004
5. Canberra Airport Group $2,435

Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea 2014
Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea is an
opportunity for friends, family or workmates
to come together, share a cuppa and some
delicious food, whilst helping those affected
by cancer. More than 440 people from the
ACT hosted a morning tea this year – in their
homes, in the community, or at work. Small
and large, formal and informal, the success of
these events is due to the passion, generosity
and goodwill of both hosts and guests. A total
of $169,568 was raised in 2013–14 down by
21% compared with 2012–13 ($214,706).
Cancer Council ACT officially launched the
event on 2 May 2014 at the Hyatt Hotel
Canberra. VIP guests were treated to a
scrumptious morning tea whilst listening to
guest speaker, Doctor Anneke Blackburn. As
a recipient of Cancer Council ACT’s research
grant, Doctor Blackburn spoke about her
latest findings from her project Targeting
cancer metabolism with dichloroacetate.

Members of team ‘The Goodberrys’ at Relay For Life 2014
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Sophie Henderson, Dorothy Barclay & Joan Waldron (Forrest Hotel & Apartments) at the launch of ABMT 2014

Cancer Council ACT would like to thank all of
our hosts, without whom the success of this
event would not be possible and thank you to
all their guests who donated so generously to
this cause.

Local Fundraising Events
Total income from local fundraising events
was $96,308. These included:
Cancer Council ACT organised:
 Christmas card sales
 Doug Russell Memorial Golf Day
 Entertainment Book sales
Community initiated and organised annual
events:
 Canada Day Fun Run

Community initiated and organised events/
fundraising (over $5000):
 Western Creek Labor Club – Charity
Bowls Day – $20,796
 ACT Monaro District Golf Association –
District Stableford Championship – $6,000

Past Years’ Results
by Calendar Year
Due to some major events being held late in
the financial year, funds raised for that year’s
event are often not received until the following
financial year. As a result the complete total
of funds raised for a particular year’s event
may not be published publicly as a matter of
course.
To provide full information and to allow valid
comparisons, printed below is a table of the
past two calendar year results for the two
events held late in the financial year: Relay For
Life and Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea.
Funds Raised

2012

2013

Relay For Life

$420,986*

$427,991

Australia’s
Biggest
Morning Tea

$228,563

$214,496

* All funds for Relay For Life 2012 were received in
2011–12
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Volunteers from PricewaterhouseCoopers lending a
hand at the Doug Russell Memorial Golf Day 2013

CCACT calculates fundraising income as
net proceeds of all fundraising merchandise
sales and event donations, direct marketing
donations, unsolicited donations, bequests
and membership fees. CCACT calculates the
Cost of Fundraising as external marketing
costs plus all other direct expenditure for
those sources of income as well as all staffing
costs for fundraising.
As a result, the fundraising costs of Cancer
Council ACT as a proportion of total gross
fundraising income is 32% (44% in 2012–13).
Most charities, however, do not include salary
costs in calculating their cost to income
ratios. Therefore without staffing costs, the
Cancer Council ACT’s fundraising cost ratio
compared to fundraising income is 20% (31%
in 2012–13).
The initial investment by Cancer Council ACT
to implement new fundraising strategies in
2011 and 2012 is now delivering additional
unrestricted income at a much lower cost.
This has had the effect of reducing the
fundraising cost to income ratio for the
financial year 2013–14, which will enable
CCACT to continue to fund its cancer
control mission.

Direct Marketing

Fundraising Income 2013–14
(before expenses)

Cancer Council ACT
Income 2013–14

Daffodil Day 7%

Government Grants 10%

P
 ink Ribbon Day
(including Girls Night In) 8%

Sun Protection Retail Sales 3%

Relay for Life 28%

Other Income 1%

A
 ustralia’s Biggest Morning Tea 7%

Interest & Royalties 3%

F
 undraising & Donations 83%
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Fundraising Cost to Income Ratio
2013–14

Other 2%
Donations 35%
Bequests 13%

Individual Giving Program
Cancer Council ACT is very grateful to the
local community for supporting its individual
giving program in 2013–14.
We would also like to extend a big thank
you to the individuals and their families
who shared their story with the Canberra
community to highlight the crucial
importance of the work Cancer Council ACT
does in the ACT.
These five people and their stories helped
CCACT raise $126,967, a fantastic 15%
increase on the previous year’s giving. Thank
you to all our generous contributors who
continued their vital support of the ACT
community in response to these appeals.

Ms Alice Bedlington,
Manger – Donor Relations

The Direct Marketing Program, which
comprises all individual donations and
bequests, raised a total of $1,048,026 in
2013–14, a 40% increase compared to
2012–13. The significant increase in income
resulted from the receipt of several bequests
during the year, including one major bequest
to be used only on research. There was
continued growth in regular giving and a
successful appeals program.
Jeannie Robinson who shared her
inspiring story with us as part of the
August 2013 Appeal campaign.
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Regular Giving Program

 Howard Grant

CCACT’s Regular Giving Program has been
running for seven years and at the end of
the 2013–14 financial year had 1,677 active
Regular Givers. Supporters of the program
donate regularly on a monthly, quarterly or
annual basis.

 Jennifer Langridge

1,541 of these Regular Givers support the
CCACT as a result of the face-to-face street
fundraising program (introduced in 2011)
and contributed $498,797 in the 2013–14
financial year.
The remaining 136 regular givers are ongoing
supporters of CCACT who have moved from
one-off donations to regular monthly giving
and new donors who have signed up online
to make regular gifts. This group of very
dedicated supporters contributed $36,589 in
the 2013–14 financial year.
We are very grateful to all Regular Givers as
these ongoing donations provide us with a
predictable source of funding for the fight
against cancer. Regular giving allows us to
plan ahead for long term research, supportive
care and education programs.

 Irena Nevins

Colin Cyril Telfer Memorial Fund
The late Mr Colin Telfer, who was a generous
supporter of the Canberra community, created
the Colin Cyril Telfer Memorial Fund within
the Capital Region Community Foundation
– Greatergood. CCACT will benefit annually
from the income in perpetuity with the first
disbursement received in 2010. In 2013–14
CCACT received $9,033 from the fund.
CCACT is appreciative of the certainty of this
annual distribution to support our work in the
local community.

Johanna Wyld Memorial Fund
In 2011 the Johanna Wyld Memorial Fund
was created within the Capital Region
Community Foundation – Greatergood. In
2013–14 CCACT received a disbursement
of $1,380 from the fund and would like to
express its appreciation for this ongoing
benefit.

In Memory Donations
CCACT received $23,254 through in
memory donations this year. When someone
close to you dies, a gift to CCACT is a
meaningful tribute to your loved one. It is also
a way to express hope that we will one day
beat cancer.
Thank you to everyone who made a donation
to CCACT in memory of a loved one in
2013–14.

Members of the face-to-face fundraising team

Bequest Program
One important way people can help CCACT
into the future is by including a Bequest in
their Will. Whatever amount people bequeath
as their personal heritance to CCACT, they
can be assured that it will be an enduring
tribute to their generosity and concern for the
welfare of fellow citizens of the ACT.
In 2013–14 CCACT received bequests to
the value of $296,360. We would like to
acknowledge the generous distributions
received from the following estates in 2013–14:
 Julian Alfred Clint
 Ellestan Joyce Dusting
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 Paul Robert Fear

CCACT worked with local funeral homes
throughout the year to accept in memoriam
donations at the request of families. We
appreciate the support received from the
following funeral directors:
 Grantley Perry & Sons
 Judy Cole and Associates
 MH O’Rourke
 Tobin Brothers
 Toscan Dinn Funerals
 W T Dennis & Sons Pty Ltd
 White Lady Funerals
 William Cole Funerals

Workplace Giving enables employees to
give directly to CCACT from their pre-tax
salary. It is one of the simplest, most costeffective ways to donate. Employers, if
they wish, can show staff that they support
the choices they make by matching funds
donated by their employees.
A special thank you goes out to the
Australian Federal Police – for many years
the biggest supporter of CCACT through
their Workplace Giving program.
CCACT would like to thank the following
workplaces and their employees for
contributing $11,544 during 2013–14 to
the fight against cancer.
 Airservices Australia
 AUSAID
 Australian Federal Police
 Australian National University
 Australian Trade Commission
 Department of Broadband,
Communications and the
Digital Economy
 Department of Education, Employment
and Workplace Relations
 Department of Families, Housing,
Community Services and Indigenous
Affairs
 Department of Foreign Affairs
 Department of Innovation, Industry,
Science and Research
 Department of Prime Minister
and Cabinet
 National Blood Authority
 The Office of the Official Secretary
to the Governor General

General Donations
In the 2013–14 financial year CCACT
received $44,102 in one-off donations
from members of the public through
online donations.

2013–14
Major Donors
Cancer Council ACT would like to sincerely
thank the following people who have made
very generous donations during 2013–14.
Russell & Penny Ball
Steve Barnes
Renita Chou
Helen Elliot
John Fitzgerald
Kylie Gardiner
Avis Gesling
Katherine Gifford
Emma Herron
Peter Hitchcock
David Kalisch
Dianne King
Arthur Le Brun
Arthur Martin
Andrew Messenger
Chris Nicholas
William & Suzanne Osborne
Julie Paterson
Guy Pedashenko
Deborah Poulton
Irene Sim
Peter Smith
Tabitha Taglietti
Bradley Turner
Nathan & Jess Ward
Helena Woolf
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Workplace Giving Program

2013–14
Event Sponsors
Daffodil Day
National Sponsors
Autograph
Be Me
Coles
Crossroads
Gordon & Gotch
Millers
Rockmans
Shell Coles Express
Startrack
Local Sponsors
Two Men and A Truck
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Pink Ribbon Day
National Sponsors
Amcal
Autograph
Best & Less
Big W
Caltex
Clover Hill
Crossroads
Curves
Finish
Millers
New Balance
Telstra
Toll
Undercoverwear
Vanish
W Lane
Local Sponsor
Tom’s Superfruits

Pink Ribbon Day Breakfast
Arbonne Consultant – Katie Sloan
Bargainrun
Belluci’s Manuka
Canberra Day Spa
Clear Complexions
Club MMM Day Spa & Club Pink
Dendy Cinemas Civic
Enviroclean Home Services
Isla Patterson
It’s In The Stars
Pacific Smiles Dental
Signature Media
The Lobby Restaurant
Threads & Style
Tree Hugga
Vanish NapiSan

Movie Night Sponsors
Arbonne Consultant – Katie Sloan
Canberra Day Spa
Clear Complexions
Dendy Cinema
Enviroclean Home Services
Gold’s Gym Canberra
Pacific Smiles Dental
Signature Media
Vanish NapiSan
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Doug Russell Memorial
Golf Day
Platinum Sponsors
ACTEW Water
Ecowise Services
Royal Canberra Golf Club
Hole Sponsors
GH Constructions
Morgans in Alliance with CIMB
Pearl Transport
Volunteers
PriceWaterhouseCoopers

Relay For Life
5 Beans Coffee
ActewAGL
Agency Nine
Australian Institute of Sport
Barlens
Belconnen Fresh Food Markets
Belluci’s Italian Manuka
Bunnings Fyshwick
Capital Chilled Foods
Chameleon Ice Creamery
Cockington Green Gardens
Coles Belconnen
DHL
Dendy Cinema Civic
Department of Defence
Elite Sound & Lighting
Essence Salon & Spa
Jazzy Jumpers
LifeCity Church Canberra
Limelight Cinemas
Little Sprout

Masters
Mix 106.3
My-T-Nice Catering
National Dinosaur Museum
Nutrimetics
Oncology Massage
Paintball Sports
Pearl Transport
Peppers Craigieburn
Pizza2u
Questacon
Seg Glide Ride
SES
St John Ambulance
Super Toyworld Fyshwick
The Teddy Bear Shop
Toys R Us – Majura Park
Warehouse Circus
Watts Communication

Australia’s Biggest
Morning Tea
National Sponsor
Lifestyle FOOD
Madura
Local Sponsors
Adore Tea
Hyatt Hotel Canberra
Latorta
Margaret Fryar
Staging Connections

Thank you to our sponsors, participants,
supporters and volunteers who have so
generously supported our fundraising
events and appeals throughout 2013–14.
We would not be able to hold the events
without you.

Following is a list of some of the
other activities Cancer Council
ACT staff were involved in during
2013–14.

Membership of ACT
Committees/Groups

Membership of
Cancer Council
Australia
Committees/Groups
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Committee

Membership of
other National
Committees/Groups
Australia and New Zealand
Quit Group
National Face to Face User Group

ACT and SE NSW Breast Cancer
Treatment Group

Australia’s Biggest Morning Tea
Sub Committee

National Network on Smoking and
Disadvantage

ACT Cervical Screening Program
Advisory Committee

Brand Committee

Parents’ Jury

ACT Health Aboriginal and Torres
Strait Islander Tobacco Control
Strategy Advisory Group

Peer Support Sub-committee

ACT Health Alliance

Chief Executive Officers’ Forum

AMA – ACT Tobacco Taskforce

Cultural and Linguistically Diverse
Sub Committee

Breast and Cervical Screening
Programs Community Reference
Group
BreastScreen Advisory Committee
Canberra Hospital Smoke Free
Environment Implementation
Steering Committee
Healthy Schools Network ACT
Medicare Local Primary Health Care
Advisory Council
Mental Health, Justice Health and
Alcohol and Drug Services Smokefree Workgroup

Business Development Committee

Cancer Council Helpline Network

Daffodil Day Sub Committee
General Practice and Public Health
Sub Committee
Girls Night In Sub Committee
Media Managers’ Network
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Other Activities
during 2013–14

Attendance at
Conferences/Forums
2nd International Conference on UV
and Skin Cancer Prevention – Berlin,
Germany
ACT Youth Affairs Conference –
Canberra
iMIS Conference – Cairns
Oceania Tobacco Control
Conference 2013 – Auckland,
New Zealand

National Direct Marketer’s Group

National Events Committee

Membership of
Other Organisations

National Grants Steering Committee

ACTCOSS

National Publications Working
Group

Australia and New Zealand
Melanoma Trials Group

National Relay For Life Committee

Canberra Action on Smoking
and Health

National Donor Working Group

National Schools and Early
Childhood Working Group

Cancer Council Australia

National Skin Cancer Committee

Fundraising Institute of Australia

Nutrition and Physical Activity
Committee

International Non-Governmental
Coalition Against Tobacco

Pink Ribbon Day Sub Committee

Medicare Local ACT

SunSmart UV Alert Working Group

Public Health Association of
Australia – ACT Branch

Supportive Care Committee
Tobacco Issues Sub Committee

SHOUT
UICC –Union for International
Cancer Control
Volunteering ACT
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Wig
Service
Volunteers
Trained
Volunteers
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Full time

Part time

Cancer
Information
Consultant
Kate Aigner

Volunteer

SunSmart
Services
Coordinator
David Wild

Tobacco
Action Officer
Bernadette
Urack

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE

Program
Administrator:
Supportive
Care and
Fundraising
Sue West

Finance Assistant
Eliza Allen

Manager of
Corporate Services
Joanne Grant

Chief Executive Officer
Joan Bartlett

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Marketing
and Events
Coordinator
Julieanne
Batten

Special
Events
Volunteers

Fundraising
Events
Coordinator
Jemma
Rossetto

Manager
Fundraising Events
Lisa Meares

Fundraising
Events
Coordinator
Abby
Masters

RESEARCH GRANT COMMITTEE

Manager –
Donor
Relations
Alice
Bedington
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Organisational Chart

Chief Executive Officer
Joan Bartlett MBA, M Ed St, B Ed St

Corporate Services
and Administration

Client Services

Manager of Corporate Services
Joanne Grant BA App Sci (Health Education)

Tobacco Action Officer
Bernadette Urack B Comm Edu

Finance Assistant
Eliza Allen BA*

SunSmart Services Coordinator
David Wild BA App Sci

Shop Manager and Office Coordinator
Naomi Mikic Dip Event Mgt (to 9/8/13)

Cancer Information Consultant
Kate Aigner*

Shop Assistant/Reception
Caitlin Jones**
Anuradha Sharma**

Program Administrator: Supportive Care
& Fundraising
Sue West*
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Staff and Volunteers

* Part-time
** Contract or Casual staff

Fundraising and
Business Development
Manager Fundraising Events
Lisa Meares
Manager – Donor Relations
Alice Bedlington
Marketing and Events Coordinator
Julieanne Batten B Comm
Fundraising Events Coordinator
Jemma Rossetto B HM

Ms Joanne Grant,
Manager of Corporate
Services

Ms Eliza Allen,
Finance Assistant

Fundraising Events Coordinator
Abby Masters B Trsm Mgt, B Sport Mgt
(from 29/7/13)
Data Entry Support
Alix Kearney**
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2013–14
Volunteers
Wig Service
Volunteers
Irene Bentley
Joan Crook
Anne Dickens
Joanne Jones
Samuel Kildea
Perrie Morris
Val Sellers

Quit Packs
Sandra Hayes

Daffodil Day
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Rachel Allen
Kylie Allum
Carolyn Amos
Emma Anderson
Ingrid Anderson
Rodney Apathy
Doris Armstrong
Shirley Avis
Haya Awni
Rosemary Baehnisch
Sue Baird
Nina Balas
James Ball
Merv Bartlett
Kerrie Basman
Jessica Bates
Irene Bentley
Wendy Berenbak
Malcolm Bernhardt
Andrew Blanckensee
Mel Bodsworth
Jerome Boland
Lyn Bray
Phillip Bray
Hugh Brideson
Sandra Brown
Jessica Bulluss
Jessica Burrows
Megan Campbell
Carmen Carlon
Jill Causer
Margaret Chaytow
Felicity Chivas
Rhonda Christian

Tanya Cole
Vicki Connellan
Barbara Court
Shelby Crane
Margaret Creed
Bob Crews
Julie Crimmins
Terri Culkin
Kate Cunningham
Alex Daley
Val Dalton
Sinh Anh Dang
Peter Davey
Rohan Dayal
Sally De Natris
Mary Dean
Ron Dean
Janaki Devaraj
Justin Drury
Jan Dunnett
Peter Dunnett
Ruby Dutta
Stephen Evered
Ivana Faden
Alison Fenwick
Jessica Fields
Dianne Flaherty
Wayne Flaherty
Gavin Ford
Trudy Frainey
Christine Fraser
Jane Freeman
Chris Freemantle
Nicola Friedlieb
Lorraine Friend
Harold Fryar
Margaret Fryar
Kath Gallagher
John Gallagher
Daria Gil
Kathy Gillard
Carmel Govaars
Lex Govaars
Margaret Goyne
Natalie Grainger
Kathie Griffiths
Michelle Groeneveld
Kelly Grzywacz
Fiona Gunn
Tammy Hackett
Jon Hale
Louise Hallam
Tim Hardy
Nicola Harrod

Geoff Herring
Jean Herring
Fiona Herrman
Georgie Holmes
Corinne Hopewell
Elaine Howell
Sue Howland
Rosemary Huff-Johnston
George Jacob
Heather James
Sladjana Janjic
Natalie Jansen
Carmel Jarvis
Nelka Jausnik
John Jeffery
Emma Jones
Terri Jones
Caitlin Judd
Roger Karlsson
Therese Kelly
Eleanor Kennealy
Rob Kennedy
Lesley Kimber
Margaret Kirkwood
Nikki Knieriem
Tracey Knight
Cleo Kosmas
Helen Kosmas
Gina Kromar
Daya Kumarage
Sheena Lambie
Nicholas Lander
Staci Lander
Ann Landragin
Gay Lane
John Langdon
Michelle Lau
Carol-Lyn Leffers
Chantel Leffers
Rachel Lemon
Vin Liston
Jan Livingstone
Achintha Liyanage
Carlene Lockyer
Jennifer Luck
Barbara MacKay
Anthony MacKenzie
Matt Madsen
Jaemi Maher
Sitauti Mailei
Leanne Major
Madeline Makeham
John Malnar
Gaby Maloney

Janet Ridley
Leah Ringuet
Clare Rix
Michele Roberts
Lolita Robles
Audrey Rough
Robert Rough
Sally Ruecroft
Louise Ruecroft-Noble
Donald Sams
Marie-Louise Samundsett
Lynne Sandland
Jane Schwinghamer
Pauline Segeri
Rebecca Shain
Majella-Rose Shanahan
Suzanne Shelley
Nyomie Sherrington
Jacki Simons
Brinder Singh
Narelle Slarke
Ashley Smart
Michele Smith
Brendan Smyth
Franca Solari
Barry Southwell
Catherine Southwell
Cate Spencer
Kimberly Spencer
Stefany Spyropoulos
Courtney Stark
Nadine Stephens
Geoff Stone
Jim Stubbs
Sydna Stubbs
John Suckling
Diana Tan
Barbara Taylor
Annelise Thomas
Judy Thompson
Karyn Thompson
Naomi Thomson
Fiona Thorpe
Fred Thorpe
Iris Thorpe
Helen Toole
Glenda Tow
Florence Tran
Erin Tucker
Soklim Va
Vinayak Vishwanath
Agnes Walker
Jill Walker
Chenny Wang

Ben Warner
Melissa Watkin
Laurel Watt
Susan White
Dale Wickham
Priyani Wijemanne
Alan Williams
Ted Williams
Elise Williamson
Julie Wilson
Victoria Wilson
Judith Wimborne
Sally Wolfhagen
Alicia Wong
Marilyn Woodward
Phillip Woodward
Kali Wunsch
Karen Xu
Jonathon Yagos
Susannah Zuckerman
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Alexandra Martyniak
Alice Mason
Beth McConchie
Kate McDonald
Brenda McFarlane
Phil McGilvray
Carmel McGregor
Katie McGuinness
Joyce McGuire
Judith McKee
Melissa McKenna
Trish McKnight
Ian McLeod
Matthew McNamara
Brittney McNicol
Geoff Meers
Skye Mendl
Eve Millington
Marline Milner
Bonnitta Mitchell
Pauline Moat
Emily Montesin
Samantha Morris
Robin Murphy
Jess Murray
Rebecca Neeson
Anh Nguyen
Julia Nicholls
Claire O’Brien
Shannon Owen
Jill Padrotta
Catherine Parisi
Elissa Parisi
Pamela Pashley
Michael Pasqualone
Sanduni Pathiratna
Sarah Patterson
Cheryl Pearce
Melanie Perrine
Ha Pham
Nolene Pilley
Catherine Pitt
Helen Pitt
Marli Popple
Bronwyn Purcell
Marg Quodling
Robert Quodling
Matt Reid
Belinda Resnik
Sandra Richards
Gary Richardson
Margaret Richardson
Rhonda Riches
Arthur Riley

Pink Ribbon Day
Gayle Abbott
Rachel Allen
Kylie Allum
Emma Anderson
Fran Antioch
Rodney Apathy
Doris Armstrong
Shirley Avis
Haya Awni
Rosemary Baehnisch
Sue Baird
James Ball
Jennifer Barnes
Helen Beasley
Marianne Bellew
Irene Bentley
Wendy Berenbak
Mel Bodsworth
Lyn Bray
Phillip Bray
Agnes Brown
Sandra Brown
Jessica Bulluss
Carol Buttigieg
Brett Byers
Jane Cartledge
Anna Cater
Margaret Chaytow
Felicity Chivas
Susan Coates
Ginny Condon
Sarah Cong
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Barbara Cornock
Barbara Court
Margaret Creed
Susan Dalliston
Val Dalton
Mary Dean
Ron Dean
Jodie Dennis
Melinda Duthie
Ruby Dutta
Barbara Edwards
Ivana Faden
Natalie Fearon
Alison Fenwick
Margaret Fisher
Dianne Flaherty
Wayne Flaherty
Trudy Frainey
Chris Freemantle
Harold Fryar
Margaret Fryar
Naveen Furqan
Daria Gil
Megan Girdlestone
Margaret Goyne
Marilyn Gracik
Jason Hall
Tim Hardy
Sandy Harris
Max Hayes
Sandra Hayes
Geoff Herring
Jean Herring
Issa Hijazi
Cec Hill
Jean Hodgson
Brenton Hutchison
George Jacob
Heather James
Carmel Jarvis
Vera Jayamanne
Emie Jiang
Eleanor Kennealy
Gev Khambata
Lesley Kimber
Margaret Kirkwood
Gabriella Kispeti
Tracey Knight
Kavya Koganti
Vera Kovacevic
Daya Kumarage
Brian Lamont
Dian Langley
Michelle Lau

Kim Laybutt
Carol-Lyn Leffers
Chantel Leffers
Rachel Lelbach
Vin Liston
Jan Livingstone
Achintha Liyanage
Barbara MacKay
Leanne Major
Eric Mak
Margaret McDermid
Jessica McDonald
Kate McDonald
Shelbie McDonald
Carmel McGregor
Katie McGuinness
Joyce McGuire
Jane McInally
Judith McKee
Melissa McKenna
Kali McQuillan
Emily Meares
Jessie Mehta
Shiel Mehta
Skye Mendl
Brooke Mills
Marline Milner
Annette Mitchell
Pauline Moat
Brunella Molinaro
Pearl Moyseyenko
Nancy Murry
Christine Mynard
Julia Nicholls
Kim Norris
Colleen North
Jenny O’Loughlan
Jill Padrotta
Catherine Parisi
Rosemary Parker
Cassia Payne
Vance Pearce
Jane Penders
Melanie Perrine
Anne-Louise Pham
Nolene Pilley
Catherine Pitt
Helen Pitt
Marli Popple
Marg Quodling
Robert Quodling
Trish Reeves
Mary Reynolds
Annette Rice

Gary Richardson
Margaret Richardson
Audrey Rough
Robert Rough
Sally Ruecroft
Louise Ruecroft-Noble
Lynne Sandland
Pauline Segeri
Tonina Seminara
Nyomie Sherrington
Jacki Simons
Narelle Slarke
Katie Sloan
Heather Smith
Franca Solari
Denise Stephens
Rhiannon Steve
Sue Stewart
Geoff Stone
Christine Strickland
Justine Stuart
Lauren Sutherland
Barbara Taylor
Karyn Thompson
Iris Thorpe
Fred Thorpe
Therese Traves
Lorna Vaessen
Peter Vaessen
Sherry Vandenbergh
Jill Walker
Carol Ward
David Ward
Laurel Watt
Janet Wendorf
Susan White
Belinda Whyte
Dale Wickham
Alan Williams
Julie Wilson
Angela Yorston
Susannah Zuckerman

Dianne Moir
Sherry Vandenbergh

The ActewAGL
Royal Canberra
Show
Kate Beasley
Sam Beattie
Diane Jackson
Richard Johnston
Carol Kowalski
Josie O’Connell
Jade Reid
Billie Spencer
Chris Stewart
Joy Urquhart
Brooke Wood

Relay For Life
Committee Members
Lyndal Bailey
Laura Baker
Jennifer Barnes
Robin Edmunds
Trudy Frainey
Eric Mak
Michele McDonald
Christine Mynard
Bryden Rich
Jodi Toleman
Claudia Vannithone
Laurel Watt
Janet Wendorf
Gary Wight
Janelle Wilson
Tracy Wu
Volunteers
Tony Armriding
Sarah Armstrong
Haya Awni
Caitlin Beasley
Helen Beasley
Kay Beaver
Marcella Bonilla
Sandra Brown
Taryne Buckley
Jess Bulluss
Jessica Burrows
Carleen Charlesworth
Rhonda Charlesworth

Unna Chidambaram
Margaret Creed
Susan Dalliston
Janaki Devaraj
Cheryl Douglas
Jessica Fields
Sarah Finnigan
Holly Fogarty
Margaret Fryar
Kelly Grzywacz
Ray Grzywacz
Tammy Hackett
Nicola Harrod
Cameron Harvey
Marina Harvey
George Jacob
Sladjana Janjic
Judith Johnson
Kate Kinsela
Vera Kovacevic
Kristen Langhorn
Rachel Lelbach
Jennifer Luck
Annie Mai
Leanne Major
Katie McGuinness
Joyce McGuire
Jane McNalley
Geoff Mears
Pauline Moat
Katie Moran
Robert Morrison
Tasmin Morrison
Cathy Parisi
Michael Pasqualone
Cheryl Pearce
Sarah Pearson
Sandra Richards
Michelle Roberts
Jeannie Robinson
Louise Ruecroft – Noble
Sally Ruecroft
Pauline Segeri
Houssam Shebaily
Denise Stephens
Rebecca Thamer
Karyn Thompson
Tracey Todd
Mhanda Tokesi
Abbey Townsend
Lorna Vaessen
Peter Vaessen
Claire van Malenstein
Ryan van Engelen

Vera Vujic
Amy Williams
Julie Wilson
Susannah Zuckerman

Canada Day
Fun Run
Volunteer Event Organisers
Dwayne Currie
Lisa Moore
Robert Routh
Zoe Routh
Volunteers
Judy Johnson
Emily Montesin
Abbey Townsend
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Christmas Card
Shop
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Cancer Council ACT
Directors 2013–14
Ms Christine Brill
President
Ms Sue Hart
Vice President
Ms Lucyanne Boom
Treasurer
Mr Kelvin Watt
Honorary Secretary
Mr Wayne Berry
Dr Paul Craft (from 3/7/13)
Mr Brian Loftus
Mr David Nolan
Dr Deborah Thornton (to 10/1/14)
Dr Kevin White

Ms Sue Hart,
Vice President

Mr Wayne Berry,
Director

Mr Brian Loftus,
Director

Mr David Nolan,
Director

Committee Membership
as at 30 June 2014
Audit Committee
Ms Christine Brill (Chairperson)
All current directors of Cancer Council ACT
Ms Joan Bartlett

Research Grant Committee
Ms Christine Brill (Chairperson)
Ms Kate Aigner
Ms Joan Bartlett
Mrs Lucyanne Boom
Dr Paul Craft
Ms Sue Hart
Dr Kevin White,
Director
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THE CANCER COUNCIL ACT
ABN: 33 113 296 601
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Notes
Operating Revenue
Shop merchandise
Employee benefits
Fundraising costs
Research grants
Occupancy costs
Other administrative costs
Loss on disposal of non current assets
Cancer Council Australia membership
Net surplus / (deficit)

Total comprehensive income for the year

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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2

3
3

2014
$
2,786,679

2013
$
2,353,124

(75,857)
(991,262)
(525,935)
(60,000)
(133,004)
(303,617)
(4,052)
(120,670)
572,282

(157,641)
(951,746)
(562,493)
(45,164)
(130,665)
(375,364)
(26)
(111,041)
18,984

572,282

18,984

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2014
Notes

2014
$

2013
$

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Total current assets

5
6
7
8

1,642,087
136,488
10,005
30,190
1,818,770

1,014,409
90,068
74,911
46,693
1,226,081

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Total non current assets

9

65,089
65,089

67,986
67,986

1,883,859

1,294,067

Total assets
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Provisions
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities

10
12
11

81,815
96,594
5,000
183,409

76,825
84,670
161,495

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions
Total non current liabilities

12

3,494
3,494

7,898
7,898

186,903

169,393

Net assets

1,696,956

1,124,674

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Restricted Funds Reserve
Total equity

1,468,756
228,200
1,696,956

1,124,674
1,124,674

Total liabilities
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THE CANCER COUNCIL ACT
ABN: 33 113 296 601

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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THE CANCER COUNCIL ACT
ABN: 33 113 296 601
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

Balance at 1 July 2012
Other comprehensive income
Net surplus for the year
Total comprehensive income for the period
Balance at 1 July 2013
Other comprehensive income
Net surplus for the year
Transfer to restricted funds reserve
Total comprehensive income for the period
Balance at 30 June 2014

Retained
earnings
$
1,105,690
18,984
18,984
1,124,674
572,282
(228,200)
344,082
1,468,756

Restricted
Funds
Reserve 1
$
228,200
228,200
228,200

Total
$
1,105,690
18,984
18,984
1,124,674
572,282
572,282
1,696,956

1

Restricted Funds Reserve: The restricted funds reserve relates to bequests and donations received by CCACT
with a purpose specified in the bequest or by the donors. These funds are held in the restricted funds reserve
until spent appropriately.
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from donations, special events and other income
Receipts from sale of merchandise
Grants received
Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net cash provided by operating activities

2013
$

2,381,409
89,737
283,620
(2,117,462)
32,716
670,020

1,752,522
308,958
274,536
(2,354,402)
38,473
20,087

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

(49,316)
6,974
(42,342)

(23,795)
(23,795)

Net movement in cash and cash equivalents

627,678

(3,708)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
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2014
$

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

5

1,014,409

1,018,117

1,642,087

1,014,409

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies
The Cancer Council ACT Limited ("the Company") applies Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced
Disclosure Requirements as set out in AASB 1053: Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards and
AASB 2010-2: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements.
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The Company is a not-for-profit entity for financial reporting
purposes under Australian Accounting Standards.
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in
financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions.
Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and
have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.
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The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis and are
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current
assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the financial statements have been
rounded to the nearest dollar.
The financial report of the Company was authorised for issue on the date of signing of the attached Directors'
Declaration by the committee directors.
Accounting Policies
(a) Income tax
The Company is income tax exempt as a health promotion charity under the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 .
(b) Inventories
Shop and wig merchandise are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned on a
first-in first-out basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(c) Financial Instruments
Recognition
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value on trade date, which includes transaction costs, when
the related contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are
measured as set out below.
Receivables
Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Held-to-maturity investments
These investments have fixed maturities, and it is the Company’s intention to hold these investments to maturity.
Any held-to-maturity investments held by the Company are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include any financial assets not included in the above categories. Available-forsale financial assets are reflected at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are taken directly to equity.
Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal
payments and amortisation.
(d) Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation or impairment write-offs. The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed
annually by the Company to ensure it is not in excess of the remaining service potential of these assets. All
classes of property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line or diminishing balance
methods.
Depreciation is charged at the following rates:
Furniture, plant and equipment
2.5% - 37.5% straight line
or 11.25% - 37.5% diminishing balance
Motor vehicles
22.5% diminishing balance
Building improvements
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20% - 33% straight line

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(e) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits
Provision is made for the Company’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits
are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries
and sick leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid
when the obligation is settled.
The Company’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, salaries and sick leave are
recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial position.
Other long-term employee benefits
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The Company classifies employees’ long service leave and annual leave entitlements as other long-term
employee benefits as they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employees render the related service. Provision is made for the Company’s
obligation for other long-term employee benefits, which are measured at the present value of the expected future
payments to be made to employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary
levels, durations of service and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate
the terms of the obligations. Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other long-term employee benefits, the
net change in the obligations is recognised in profit or loss classified under employee benefits expense.
The Company’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current liabilities in its
statement of financial position, except where the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are
presented as current liabilities.
Retirement benefit obligations
Defined contribution superannuation benefits
All employees of the Company receive defined contribution superannuation entitlements, for which the Company
pays the fixed superannuation guarantee contribution (currently 9.25% of the employee’s average ordinary
salary) to the employee’s superannuation fund of choice. All contributions in respect of employee’s defined
contributions entitlements are recognised as an expense when they become payable. The Company’s obligation
with respect to employees’ defined contribution entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid
superannuation guarantee contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations for unpaid
superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when
the obligation is settled and are presented as current liabilities in the Company’s statement of financial position.
(f) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call with banks or financial institutions.
(g) Research grants
Research grants are recognised as expenses at the time the funds are disbursed to the research body.
Research grants that have been contracted but not yet paid are disclosed as commitments payable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(h) Revenue recognition
Goods and services
Revenue from the sale of merchandise is recognised upon delivery of the goods to customers. Revenue from
the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customers.
Donations, bequests and membership fees
Donations, bequests and membership fees are recognised as revenue when received.
Grants
Operational grants are recognised as revenue on receipt or entitlement to receive except for operational grants
received in respect of future financial years which are recognised as income received in advance (liabilities,
unearned revenue). Project grants are recognised as revenue to the extent that the monies have been applied in
accordance with the conditions of the grant. Project grants received prior to the year end but unexpended as at
that date are recognised as unexpended project grants (liabilities, unearned revenue).
Fundraising events
Revenue and costs from fundraising events is recognised as revenue and expense on completion of the event.
Income received and expenses incurred prior to event are recognised as income in advance (liabilities, unearned
revenue) and prepayments (other current assets) respectively.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets.
Dividend and royalty income
Dividend and royalty income is recognised when received.
(i) Goods and Services Tax
All revenue and expenses are stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).
(j) Impairment
At each reporting date, the Company reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is
compared to the asset's carrying value. As a not-for-profit entity, value in use for the Company, according to
AASB 136 Impairment of Assets , is depreciated replacement cost. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over
its recoverable amount is expensed to the statement of comprehensive income.
(k) Critical accounting judgement and estimates
The directors evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events
and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Company.
Key Estimates - Impairment
The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that
may lead to impairment of assets. Should an impairment indicator exist, the determination of the recoverable
amount of the asset may require incorporation of a number of key estimates. No impairment indicators were
present at 30 June 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 1: Summary of significant accounting policies (cont'd)
(l) Leases
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risk and benefits incidental to the ownership of
the asset remain with the lessor, are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
Lease incentives
In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into non-cancellable operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight line basis over the lease term. Lease payments are allocated
between rental expense, reduction of the liability and, where appropriate, interest expense over the term of the
lease.
(m) Comparative information
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation in this
financial report.
(n)
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New and amended accounting policies

Employee benefits
During the year, the Company adopted AASB 119: Employee Benefits (September 2011) and the relevant
consequential amendments arising from the related Amending Standards, which are mandatorily applicable from
1 January 2013. (As a result, the Company early adopted AASB 2011-11: Amendments to AASB 119
(September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements because the Company’s financial statements
are prepared under Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements).
The Company has applied AASB 119 (September 2011) with retrospective effect. Among other things, the main
changes introduced by AASB 119 (September 2011) relate to defined benefit plans and termination benefits,
which have no impact on the Company’s financial statements as the Company has no defined benefit obligations
or termination benefits at present. Additionally, AASB 119 (September 2011) has introduced revised definitions
for “short-term employee benefits” and “other long-term employee benefits”. These revisions cause a change in
accounting policy for the annual leave provision amounts recognised in the financial statements as explained
below.
Provision for employee benefits: annual leave
For the purpose of measurement, AASB 119 (September 2011) defines obligations for short-term employee
benefits as obligations expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related services. Previously, annual leave satisfied the definition of
short-term employee benefits and therefore the leave liability was measured on an undiscounted basis at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liability was settled. However, under AASB 119 (September 2011), as the
Company expects that most employees will not use all of their annual leave entitlements in the same year in
which they are earned or during the 12-month period that follows, obligations for annual leave entitlements now
meet the definition of other long-term employee benefits and, therefore, are required to be measured at the
present value of the expected future payments to be made to employees. Note, however, that these changes do
not impact the classification of leave entitlements between current and non-current liability in the statements of
financial position. No material adjustments to the carrying amounts of the Company’s annual leave provision
were required as a consequence of applying AASB 119.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
2014
$
Note 2: Revenue
Special events
Grants
Donations
Shop sales
Interest
Royalties
Training and education fees
Bequests
Other products and services
Membership fees

4

Note 3: Surplus / (Deficit) From Ordinary Activities
Net surplus / (deficit) has been determined after:
(a) Expenses
Operating lease rentals - office and shop premises
Depreciation of non-current assets:
► furniture, plant and equipment
► motor vehicles
Total depreciation
Employee benefits expense:
► salaries, wages and workers compensation
► defined contribution superannuation plan
► movements in employee provisions
Total employee benefits
Research grants provided

2013
$

1,204,033
283,620
804,031
89,737
32,209
32,660
15,848
306,773
17,308
460
2,786,679

986,375
274,536
683,122
308,958
30,605
27,621
18,775
9,850
12,715
567
2,353,124

117,326

112,851

35,543
5,644
41,187

38,189
5,227
43,416

894,026
76,476
20,760
991,262

861,423
70,418
19,905
951,746

60,000

45,164

Note 4: Grants Revenue
Funding body:
ACT Dept of Health and Community Care:
► Cancer Support Service &Smoking
Cessation
► Sun Smart Program
The Snow Foundation Limited
► Wig Service
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Unexpended
funds at 30 June
2013

Grants received
during the year
(excluding GST)

Grants utilised
during the year

Unexpended
funds at 30 June
2014

-

191,789
86,831

191,789
86,831

-

-

5,000
283,620

5,000
283,620

-

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
2014
$
Note 5: Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cash at bank

Note 6: Receivables
CURRENT
Trade debtors
Interest receivable
Amounts receivable from related party - Cancer Council Australia
Other receivables

2013
$

1,308
1,640,779
1,642,087

1,658
1,012,751
1,014,409

3,460
1,437
33,232
98,359
136,488

3,397
1,944
18,800
65,927
90,068
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No receivables were overdue at balance date.
No impairment indicators were present in respect of receivables at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013.
Note 7: Inventories
Shop merchandise
Wig merchandise

433
9,572
10,005

66,397
8,514
74,911

No impairment indicators were present in respect of inventories at 30 June 2014 or 30 June 2013.
Note 8: Other Current Assets
Prepayments
Note 9: Property, Plant and Equipment
Furniture, plant and equipment – at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Motor vehicles – at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Building improvements - at cost
Accumulated depreciation

Total Property, Plant and Equipment

30,190

46,693

200,670
(159,675)
40,995

221,514
(171,596)
49,918

44,262
(20,168)
24,094

43,797
(25,729)
18,068

105,000
(105,000)
-

105,000
(105,000)
-

65,089

67,986
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 9: Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)
(a) Movement in the carrying amounts for each
class of property, plant and equipment
between the beginning and the end of the
current financial year
Balance at 1 July 2013
Additions
Depreciation expense
Disposals
Balance at 30 June 2014

Furniture, plant
and equipment

$
49,918
26,832
(35,543)
(212)
40,995

Motor vehicles

$
18,068
22,484
(5,644)
(10,814)
24,094
2014
$

Note 10: Payables
CURRENT
Unsecured liabilities:
Employee benefits payable
Other creditors and accrued expenses
Amounts payable to related parties (Note 17)
Portable long service leave liability

Total

$
67,986
49,316
(41,187)
(11,026)
65,089
2013
$

50,284
23,245
5,212
3,074
81,815

48,378
23,067
2,500
2,880
76,825

5,000

-

► Annual leave

68,577

63,437

► Long service leave (vested)

28,017
96,594

21,233
84,670

3,494

7,898

Note 11: Unearned Revenue
Unearned Revenue
Note 12: Provisions
CURRENT
Employee benefits:

NON-CURRENT
Employee benefits:
► Long service leave (non-vested)
(a) Provision for employee benefits

Provision for employee benefits represents amounts accrued for annual leave and long service leave.
The current portion for this provision includes the total amount accrued for annual leave entitlements and the
amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have vested due to employees having completed the
required period of service. Based on past experience, the Company does not expect the full amount of annual
leave or long service leave balances classified as current liabilities to be settled within the next 12 months.
However, these amounts must be classified as current liabilities since the Company does not have an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of these amounts in the event employees wish to use their entitlement.
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The non-current portion for this provision includes amounts accrued for long service leave entitlements that have
not yet vested in relation to those employees who have not yet completed the required period of service.
In calculating the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long
service leave vesting is based upon historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria for employee
benefits have been discussed in Note 1(e).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 13: Company Details
(a) Location
The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is:
The Cancer Council ACT Limited
5 Richmond Avenue
Fairbairn ACT 2609
(b) Activities
The Company operates in the Canberra and surrounding region providing health management and education
services.
Note 14: Commitments for Expenditure
Operating lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised:
Payable:
► not later than 1 year
► later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

139,853
72,427
212,280
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59,651
59,651

► Lease for 5 Richmond Avenue, Fairbairn, ACT. The lease commenced on 6 December 2011 for a term of 2
years expiring 5 December 2013. The lease has been renewed in July 2014 starting on 6 December 2014 for a
further 2 years to 5 December 2015.
► Lease commitments payable also includes the IMIS hosting lease payable.
Capital commitments
Non-cancellable capital purchases contracted for but not yet paid:
Payable:
► not later than 1 year
► later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

9,602
19,204
28,806

9,015
9,015

Note 15: Compensation of Key Management Personnel
$
2014
Total compensation
134,692
2013
Total compensation

129,715
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
Note 16: Related Party Transactions
During 2014, all transactions during the year were on normal commercial terms and conditions unless otherwise
stated.
► The Company is a member of and has a common director with Cancer Council Australia. The Company and
other membership organisations in each state and territory contribute annual membership fees, purchase
fundraising merchandise and receive net fundraising income from Cancer Council Australia.
Note 17: Financial Risk Management
The Company’s principal financial instruments comprise cash at bank, receivables and accounts payable. These
financial instruments arise from the operations of the Company.
The carrying amounts for each category of financial instruments, measured in accordance with AASB 139 as
detailed in the accounting policies to these financial statements, are as follows:
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

1,642,087

1,014,409

Receivables
Total Financial Assets

136,488
1,778,575

90,068
1,104,477

81,815
81,815

76,825
76,825

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Payables
Total Financial Liabilities
Note 18: Subsequent Events
The financial report of the Company was authorised for issue on the date of signing of the attached Directors'
Declaration by the directors.
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014
(To be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Review Report)
2014
$

2013
$

REVENUE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Shop sales
Grants
Membership fees
Training and education fees
Donations
Bequests
Special events
Other products and services
NON-OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest
Royalties
Total revenue

89,737
283,620
460
15,848
804,031
306,773
1,204,033
17,308
2,721,810

308,958
274,536
567
18,775
683,122
9,850
986,375
12,715
2,294,898

32,209
32,660
64,869
2,786,679

30,605
27,621
58,226
2,353,124

1,454
10,722
22,101
829,446
29,625
76,476
5,139
15,621
678
991,262

1,480
10,414
16,639
815,918
11,107
70,418
4,033
15,872
5,865
951,746

75,857
75,857

157,641
157,641

EXPENSES
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
FBT Expense
Workers compensation insurance
Professional development
Wages & Salaries
Contract staff
Superannuation
Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave
Recruitment fees
Total Employee Benefits
SHOP MERCHANDISE
Shop merchandise
Total Shop Merchandise
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 (continued)
(To be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Review Report)
2014
$
FUNDRAISING COSTS
Fundraising purchases of services
Fundraising merchandise
Fundraising face to face
National events
Total Fundraising Costs

2013
$

177,883
59,241
269,548
19,263
525,935

149,137
44,716
360,068
8,572
562,493

RESEARCH GRANTS
Grants for cancer research
Total Research Grants

60,000
60,000

45,164
45,164

OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS
Advertising & promotion
Staff and Committee amenities
Audit & accounting
Bank charges
Bad debts
Cleaning, supplies & services

17,473
947
9,250
13,071
357
12,842

25,697
5,021
17,000
12,616
11,862

Client resources
Consultancy fees
Depreciation
Freight & postage
Hire of equipment and premises
IT support
Local travel
Major meetings
Memberships & subscriptions
Miscellaneous
Motor vehicle
National Cancer Council projects
Other insurance
Photocopier

36,688
390
41,187
16,240
300
29,758
4,899
10,718
3,132
2,446
20,527
11,849
31,264
5,187

32,608
6,678
43,416
16,701
24,994
52,368
3,822
12,773
1,930
1,604
23,569
2,182
36,505
5,923

2,580
1,653
9,631
17,111
4,117
303,617

2,757
4,532
7,339
22,487
980
375,364

Printing
Repairs & maintenance
Stationery
Telephone & fax
Security
Total Other Administrative Costs
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DETAILED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014 (continued)
(To be read in conjunction with the attached Independent Review Report)
2014
$
OCCUPANCY COSTS
Utilities
Rent
Total Occupancy Costs
LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS
Loss on disposal of assets
Total loss on disposal of assets
CCA MEMBERSHIP FEES
Cancer Council Australia membership fees
Total CCA Membership Fees
Total expenses
Net surplus / (deficit) for the financial year
Amounts transferred to the restricted funds reserve
Net surplus / (deficit) for the financial year held in retained earnings
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2013
$

15,678
117,326
133,004

17,814
112,851
130,665

4,052
4,052

26
26

120,670
120,670

111,041
111,041

2,214,397

2,334,140

572,282

18,984

(228,200)
344,082

18,984

Simple Steps to
Minimise Your Cancer Risk
Avoid tobacco smoke

Eat a healthy diet

 Quit smoking

 Lots of fruit and vegetables, five
or more servings of vegetables
and two or more servings of fruit
per day

 If a non-smoker, try to avoid other
people’s smoke

Protect your skin from the sun
 Sun protection is recommended
when UV levels reach 3 and
above
 Slip on some sun-protective
clothing that covers as much skin
as possible
 Slop on SPF30+ broad-spectrum
sunscreen. Always use in
combination with the other sun
protection measures
 Slap on a hat that protects your
face, head, neck and ears
 Slide on some sunglasses.
A close fitting, wrap-around
style will offer best protection.
Sunglasses should meet AS1067
 Seek shade whenever possible
 Take particular care between
10am and 3pm. (During daylight
savings minimise time outdoors
between 11am and 3pm as much
as practicably possible)
 For the majority of people, sun
protection is not necessary in
the ACT during June and July

Maintain a healthy body weight
by getting the balance right between
what you eat and how physically
active you are.

 Plenty of breads and cereals
preferably wholegrain
 Have moderate amounts of
lean red meat and limit or avoid
processed meat
 Limit or avoid drinking alcohol
 Choose foods low in salt, sugar
and fat, particularly saturated fat

Be physically active
 Aim to have one hour of
moderate activity or 30 minutes
of vigorous activity on most days.
Activity can be done in 10 minute
sessions throughout the day
 If currently inactive, then any
increase in activity is beneficial

Early Detection
Finding cancer early offers one of the
best chances to cure the disease.
Be aware of what is normal for your
body and visit your doctor if you
notice any changes or have any
concerns. Look for:
 lumps or sores that don’t heal
 coughs or hoarseness that won’t
go away
 unexplained weight loss
 a mole or skin spot that changes
shape, size or colour

Postal address:
PO Box 143 FYSHWICK
ACT 2609
Phone: (02) 6257 9999
Street address:

Fax: (02) 6257 5055

5 Richmond Avenue
FAIRBAIRN ACT 2609

Email: reception@actcancer.org
Website: www.actcancer.org

 changes in your toilet habits or
blood in a bowel motion
 unusual changes in your breasts
 for women, any loss of blood,
even if it is a few spots between
your periods or after they have
stopped

Screening
 Women 50 years of age and over
should have a mammogram to
screen for breast cancer every
two years
 Women 18–70 years of age
should have a Pap test for cancer
of the cervix every two years,
even if they have had the HPV
vaccine
 Men and women 50 years and
over should test for bowel cancer
using a bowel cancer testing kit
every two years
 Men concerned about prostate
cancer should speak to their
doctor to make an informed
decision about whether testing is
right for them

Immunisation
Girls, boys and women can help
prevent cancer of the cervix and
other cancers caused by Human
Papillomavirus (HPV) by having
the HPV vaccine which is most
effective when given before a person
becomes sexually active.

